INSTR \$ 2025179489
BK 13646 Pss 1983-1988 PG(s)6
RECORDED 07/31/2025 04:11:30 PM
STACY M. BUTTERFIELD, CLERK OF COURT

POLK COUNTY RECORDING FEES \$52.50 RECORDED BY militorn

This instrument prepared by:

Robert C. Chilton, Esq. Boswell & Dunlap LLP 245 S. Central Avenue Bartow, FL 33830 (863) 533-7117

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM AND BYLAWS OF OUTDOOR RESORTS AT ORLANDO, INC., A CONDOMINIUM

WHEREAS, the original Declaration of Condominium of OUTDOOR RESORTS AT ORLANDO, INC., a condominium, was recorded on July 22, 1971 in O.R. Book 1373, Page 2889 et seq., public records of Polk County, Florida;

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Declaration of Condominium of OUTDOOR RESORTS AT ORLANDO, INC., a condominium, was recorded on December 7, 2015 in O.R. Book 9692, Pages 1451 et seq., and has been amended from time to time, including via Certificate of Amendment recorded on March 20, 2025 in O.R. Book 13474, Page 1770 et seq., all in the public records of Polk County, Florida ("Declaration");

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated By-Laws of OUTDOOR RESORTS AT ORLANDO, INC., a condominium, were recorded on April 26, 2001 in O.R. Book 4685, Pages 868 et seq., and have been amended from time to time, including via amendment recorded on March 21, 2017 in O.R. Book 10106, Page 934 et seq., all in the public records of Polk County, Florida ("Bylaws");

WHEREAS, Article VII of the Declaration provides that the same may be amended by the approval of not less than a majority of the voting interests of OUTDOOR RESORTS AT ORLANDO, INC., a condominium ("Association") who are present in person or by proxy at a duly called meeting of the Association's membership;

WHEREAS, Article IX of the By-Laws provides that the same may be altered, amended or added to at any duly called meeting of the Unit Owners by a majority vote of the total votes cast if approved by at least six board members or, if not approved by at least six board members, by a three-quarters vote of the total votes cast at the meeting;

WHEREAS, the amendments herein certified was approved by at least six members of the Board of Directors at the duly noticed and called board meeting held at which a quorum was present; and

WHEREAS, at the duly called and noticed meeting of the Association's membership held on July 19, 2025, at which a quorum was present, the below described amendments were duly adopted and approved by the voting interests of the Association;

Page 1 of 6

CERTIFICATION ON LAST PAGE STACY M. BUTTERFIELD, CPA CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Page 1 of 6

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned, on behalf of the Association, does hereby certify and attest that pursuant to the action duly and properly taken by the requisite number of members, the following amendments to the Declaration and Bylaws be and the same are hereby adopted (deletions are lined through and additions are underlined; words to be underlined are underlined twice):

Amendment 1 - Article XI § D(1) of the Declaration is amended as follows:

- 1. No Unit shall be sold, rented—outside of the rental program, transferred or assigned, nor shall the occupancy of a Unit change, and no such sale, rental, transfer, assignment or change in occupancy shall take effect for any purpose until:
- a. The Association has received a completed application from the prospective owner, renter, transferee, assignee or occupant along with such additional information as the Board may from time to time require;
- b. The Association has received a credit and criminal background screening report relating to the prospective owner, renter, transferee, assignee or new occupant, which shall be prepared, commissioned and procured in the manner established by the Board; and
- c. The prospective owner, renter, transferee, assignee or new occupant has been approved by the Association; which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

For clarification and notwithstanding the foregoing, the requirement to submit an application, and undergo a credit and criminal background check, does not apply to day-visitors, guests under 18 years of age, guests whose stay does not exceed thirty (30) days in the aggregate in any twelve (12) month period, persons who are already Unit owners, or persons who have acquired title to a Unit by inheritance. In addition, credit checks are not required for renters in the rental program whose rental duration is less than 6 months and persons who have had a credit check and been approved by the Association within the preceding twelve (12) months. Finally, criminal background checks are not required for persons who have had a criminal background check and been approved by the Association within the preceding twelve (12) months.

Amendment 2 - Article XI § D(3) of the Declaration is amended as follows:

The criteria by which completed applications shall be screened is as follows:

- a. No violent or financial <u>domestic violence</u> misdemeanor convictions within the <u>plast 5 years</u>;
 - b. No violent or financial felony convictions within the last 15 years;
 - c. Not a registered sexual offender/sexual predator;

Page 2 of 6

- d. No recent-history of foreclosures or evictions within the last 7 years, when a credit check is required; and
 - e. Minimum credit score of 600, when a credit check is required.; and
- _____f. Applicant is at least 55 years of age or, if applicant will be occupying a unit already occupied by someone aged 55 or over, at least 40 years of age;

Amendment 3 - The opening paragraph of Article XIII § 13 of the Declaration is amended as follows:

It is the intent of this provision that the Condominium comply with the Federal Fair 13. Housing Amendments Act of 1988, as the same may be amended from time to time, and comparable law adopted by the State of Florida, which currently require that at least eighty (80%) percent of the occupied units comprising the condominium shall at all times have at least one occupant who is age fifty-five (55) years or older. Accordingly, notwithstanding any other provisions of the Declaration and in accordance with the aforesaid laws, at least one person age fifty-five (55) years or older must be a permanent occupant of each occupant unit. In addition, at no time shall less than eighty percent (80%) of all occupied units be occupied by at least one person who is age fifty-five (55) years or older. Persons under age fifty-five (55) years and persons age eighteen (18) years or older may occupy and reside in a unit as long as one of the other occupants of the unit is age fifty-five (55) years or older. Persons under age eighteen (18) years shall be allowed to visit a unit, and stay overnight, but only on a temporary basis, not to exceed thirty (30) days in the aggregate in any twelve-month period, and only so long as another person age fifty-five (55) years or older occupies the unit at the same time. Persons eighteen (18) years of age or older and under fifty-five (55) years of age who are the spouse, parent, in-law, sibling or child of an owner shall be allowed to visit a unit, and stay overnight even if someone over fiftyfive (55) years of age is not occupying the unit, but only on a temporary basis not to exceed thirty (30) days in the aggregate in any twelve (12) month period. Unit Owners who are eighteen (18) years of age or older and under fifty-five (55) years of age may occupy their unit without someone aged fifty-five (55) or older but only on a temporary basis not to exceed ninety (90) days in the aggregate in any twelve (12) month period.

Amendment 4 - Article I § E of the Declaration is amended as follows:

E. Limited Common Elements mean and include those common elements which are reserved for the use of certain units, to the exclusion of all other units, and include the seawalls adjacent to the waterfront units for the entire width of the unit (for clarification, this means from one property line across the width of the parcel to the other property line).

Amendment 5 - Article XII(C) of the Declaration is created as follows:

Each Owner is responsible for insuring, and shall insure, either through a third party or self-insure, their own Unit, the limited common elements appurtenant thereto, the

Page 3 of 6

improvements thereon and personal property therein. Such insurance shall provide adequate repair or replacement coverage for loss or damage by hurricane or other casualty, and adequate liability coverage.

Amendment 6 - Article XIV of the Declaration is amended as follows:

A. <u>Maintenance of the common elements is the responsibility of the Association, except for any maintenance responsibility for limited common elements assigned to the unit owner by the Declaration.</u> The Board of Directors of the Association may enter into a contract with any firm, person or corporation for the maintenance and repair of the condominium property, and may join with other condominium corporations in the contracting with the same firm, person or corporation for maintenance and repair.

The Board of Directors may likewise enter into contract with any public or private utility for the furnishing of such public services as electricity or sewerage disposal to the condominium. This may include the purchase, by the condominium, of wholesale electricity or the payment for the use of any sewerage disposal plant. The Board of Directors may likewise, from time to time, enter into long term leases for the use of such public utilities or may purchase the same outright and thereafter, the said facility may, by an amendment to this declaration, become a part of the common elements.

- There shall be no material alterations, or substantial additions to the common elements or limited common elements, except as provided in this Article XIV herein above in Section A, or except as the same are authorized by the Board of Directors, and ratified by the affirmative voting members casting not less than a majority of the total votes of the members of the Association present in person or by proxy at any regular or special meeting of the unit owners called for that purpose: provided the aforesaid alterations or additions do not prejudice the right of any unit owner unless his consent has been obtained. The cost of the foregoing shall be assessed as common expenses. Where any alteration or additions as aforedescribed, are for the exclusively or substantially exclusive benefit of the unit owner(s) requesting same, then the cost of such alterations or additions shall be assessed against and collected solely from the unit owners exclusively or substantially exclusively benefiting and the assessment shall be levied in such proportion as may be determined as fair and equitable by the Board of Directors of the Association. Where such alterations or additions as aforedescribed are for the exclusive or substantially exclusive benefit of the unit owners requesting same, said alterations or additions shall only be made when authorized by the Board of Directors and ratified by not less than a majority of the total voters of the unit owners present in person or by proxy, exclusively or substantially exclusively benefiting therefrom, and where said unit owners are ten or less the approval of all but one shall be required.
- C. Maintenance of the units and any limited common elements appurtenant thereto shall be the responsibility of the unit's owner, who shall keep the same in good condition and repair. This obligation includes responsibility for maintenance, repair and replacement of seawalls adjacent to waterfront units for the entire width of the property, which must be performed by a

Page 4 of 6

duly licensed and insured vendor. Any repair, replacement or maintenance of the seawalls must have prior approval before commencing any such work and follow the architectural guidelines established by Outdoor Resorts at Orlando. All maintenance, replacement and repairs for which unit owners are responsible and obligated to perform, which if not performed would affect other units, other limited common elements or common elements, or the architectural integrity of the condominium property, shall be performed promptly as the need arises and if, after reasonable notice, a unit owner fails to fulfill this obligation, the Association may, through its agents and in addition to its other remedies, enter upon the unit during reasonable hours to conduct the necessary maintenance or repairs. Any expenses incurred by the Association in performing this work, including, if incurred, the Association's collection costs, court costs and attorney's fees, shall be the personal obligation of the unit owner and also a charge and lien against the unit.

Amendment 7 - Article V § 4(a) of the Bylaws is amended as follows:

The Board of Directors of the Corporation shall fix and determine from time to time, the sum or sums necessary and adequate for the common expenses of the Condominium property. Common expense shall include expenses for the operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of the common elements and the limited common elements, except where such operation, maintenance, repair or replacement are the obligation of the unit owner, costs of carrying out the power and duties of the Corporation, all insurance premiums and expenses relating thereto, including fire insurance and extended coverage, and any other expenses designated as common expenses from time to time, by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The Board of Directors is specifically empowered, on behalf of the Corporation, to make and collect assessments, and to maintain, repair and replace the common elements and the limited common elements, except where such operation, maintenance, repair or replacement are the obligation of the unit owner of the Condominium. Funds for the payment of the common expenses shall be assessed against the unit owners in the proportions of percentages of sharing common expenses as provided in the Declaration. Said Assessments shall be payable as ordered by the Board of Directors. Special Assessments, should such be required by the Board of Directors, shall be levied in the same manner as herein before provided for regular assessments, and shall be payable in the manner determined by the Board of Directors.

Amendment 8 - Article VI of the Bylaws is amended as follows:

Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Declaration, there shall be no substantial additions or alterations to the Common Elements or Limited Common Elements unless the same are authorized by the Board of Directors and ratified by the affirmative vote of the Voting Members casting not less than a majority of the total votes cast at a duly called meeting of the unit owners at which a quorum is present.

ALL OTHER TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THE DECLARATION AND BYLAWS SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.

[continue to following page]

Page 5 of 6

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the Presence of: Signature County of July, 2025. Signature County of July, 2025. Signature County of July, 2025. County of July, 2025, by Robert McNeely, as President, and Stephanie Ross, as Secretary of Outdoor Resorts at Orlando, Inc., a condominium.

Notary Public - State of Florida

[x] Produced Identification

Type of ID Produced: drivers' license

Notary Public State of Florida Sebrine C Stone My Commission HH 330844 Expires 11/23/2026

Page 6 of 6

Book13646/Page1988

CFN#2025179489

Page 6 of 6

